
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
December 1, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:31 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 
p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The 
following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 3, 2016 Regular Meeting, revised to 
reflect the attendance of Dan Shaw from Brandis Tallman. 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 1







 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
A-. (6:33 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-12, Approval of the Revised 2017-


2024 Capital Improvement Program.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Questions and discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 
16-12, Adopting the 2017-2024 Capital Improvement Program.  Director Schaap 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
 
V-B. (6:47 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Fish Flow Project EIR and Sonoma County Water 


Agency Petitions to Change Decision 1610.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken, but Director Marquez de la Plata 
agreed to inquire about setting up a meeting with Sonoma County Supervisor Lynda 
Hopkins.   


 
V-C. (7:22 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Expiration and/or Possible Extension, etc., of 


Lease with Ferrellgas for District Office Space.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to inquire about a possible lease 
extension.   


 
V-D. (7:26 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Election of Board Officers.  President Lipinski 


introduced this item.  Discussion ensued.   
  
 Director Lipinski nominated Director Robb-Wilder for President.  Director Schaap 


seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   
 
 Director Schaap nominated Director Marquez de la Plata for Vice President.  Director 


Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Director Holmer nominated Director Lipinski for Financial Coordinator.  Director Marquez 


de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   
 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:36 p.m.) 


 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. River Lane Property Sale 
5. Russian River Flooding Planning 
8. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
9. In-House Construction Projects 
10. Gantt Chart 
11. Member vote on CUWCC Council Board regarding CUWCC evolution 
12. Implementing Executive Order B-37-16 re Making water conservation in California a way 
     of life 
13. LAFCO position open 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


 2







 3


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(7:50 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Holmer commented that a neighbor of his would be walking a petition around 


regarding the Fish Flow Project DEIR during the Parade of Lights. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (None) 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:52 p.m.) 
 
1. Fish Flow project 
2. Ferrellgas lease 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:36 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(7:50 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (None)



		ADJOURN






 
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


January 5, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 1, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A.   Discussion/Action re Draft letter regarding Fish Flow Project DEIR and Sonoma 


County Water Agency Petitions to Change Decision 1610. (Est. time 15 min.)   
 
B. Discussion/Action re Expiration and/or Possible Extension, etc., of Lease with 


Ferrellgas for District Office Space (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Introduction to FY 2017-18 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget Process (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
   
  


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : January 5, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  REVIEW OF AND COMMENTS ON THE SONOMA COUNTY 
WATER AGENCY FISH FLOW PROJECT 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding his review of the Sonoma County draft Environmental Impact Report 
on its proposal to change Water Rights Decision 1610 with changes proposed by 
the Fish Flow Project, review and comment on a proposed comment letter on the 
DEIR, and provide direction to staff.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In mid August 2016, the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) released the long-
awaited draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) on the Fish Habitat Flows and Water 
Rights Project, also called the Fish Flow Project. This DEIR is the environmental 
document for their proposed changes to Water Rights Decision 1610 which governs how 
releases from the dams that regulate the Russian River are made and sets a range of 
required minimum flows at various points in the River.  It appears that SCWA wants to 
achieve two major actions from the proposed changes to Decision 1610: 
 


 Make permanent the flow changes ordered by the Biological Opinion for 
endangered salmonid species in the Russian River (BO), and 


 
 Change the Decision 1610 hydrologic index so that 1) it is based on Lake 


Mendocino instead of Lake Pillsbury, has more ( from 3 currently to 5) conditions 
on which to base releases, 3) takes account of the reduced inflows from the Eel 
River, and 4) has more flexibility seasonally, going from seasonal decisions to 
monthly decisions.   


 
Based on the schedule released when the EIR was made publicly available, comments 
on the draft EIR had to be in by October 17, 2016.  On September 13, 2016, SCWA 
made a public presentation of the draft EIR at the Board of Supervisors meeting.  I and 
many others commented that we needed more time to review the document.  The 
Supervisors heard that plea and the comment period was extended to February 14 with 
a public hearing in Guerneville at the Vet's Hall on November 17.     
 







Fish Flow Project DEIR  2 
January 5, 2017 


 


Concerns we have discussed and expressed regarding the Fish Flow Project and its DEIR 
include:  
 


 Water Rights:  The Fish Flow Project petition makes the statement that it harms 
no existing water rights.  SCWA staff has told us that in their opinion SSWD has 
no right to divert water when the River is in critical drought stage (not clear 
where we would stand in their opinion with their new HI).  The Fish Flow Project 
adds a diversion point in Monte Rio for the Occidental Community Services 
District and the Urban Water Management Plan states that additional water would 
be diverted to Marin County so SSWD is being harmed by this project.  This is an 
impact of the Fish Flow Project that should be discussed in the DEIR and it is 
easily fixed.     


 
 75,000 AFY Diversion:  the requested 75,000 AFY diversion is an illusory number 


- SCWA hasn't come near that amount to date (D1610 gave them until 1999 to 
perfect that amount) and that without a massive population increase State 
requirements on water conservation will not allow the contractors to SCWA come 
close to that number.  The DEIR should honestly discuss this issue and provide 
alternatives to a 75,000 AFY diversion amount.   


 
 Hydrologic Index:  It's a good idea but the HI is given as a fait accompli and the 


EIR should discuss alternatives.   
 
Attached to this report is a draft comment letter that includes the District's issues with 
the DEIR.  Please review this letter and provide comments and direction regarding 
submittal prior to the comment deadline on February 14.   
 
As I have stated many times, I believe these issues should be resolved in county, not 
before the State Board.  Directors Marquez de la Plata and Holmer, and I met with 
Supervisor-elect Hopkins on December 19 to discuss this issue.  She agreed with the 
above concept and encouraged me to meet with Supervisor Gore on this issue.  I am 
working on setting up that meeting.    







 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 12, 2017 
 
Sonoma County Water Agency 
Attn: Jessica Martini-Lamb, Principal Environmental Specialist 
404 Aviation Boulevard 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
 
Ms Martini-Lamb: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft Environmental 
Impact Report (DEIR) for the proposed Fish Habitat Flows and Water 
Rights Project (Fish Flow Project).  This is an important proposal that, 
if approved as outlined in the DEIR, and will have lasting effects on the 
many users of the Russian River.  For that reason, this DEIR must be 
complete and fully describe the reasonably anticipated impacts that 
the Fish Flow Project will have on the residents of the Russian River 
watershed.    
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District strongly urges the Board of 
Directors of the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) to not approve 
the Fish Flow Project and not certify this DEIR.  The Fish Flow Project 
harms the water rights of Sweetwater Springs Water District (which is 
not discussed in the DEIR), and has other impacts that should be 
discussed in the DEIR and provide mitigation, or the Project should be 
modified.  The SCWA Board of Directors should direct the staff of 
SCWA to conduct the claimed extended outreach to develop a project 
that serves all residents of Sonoma County.  The Sonoma County 
Water Agency should be the preeminent water agency in the County 
and as such should be looking out for the best interests of all residents 
of the County and the Russian River Watershed.   The Fish Flow 
Project is an opportunity to fix the many issues of the Russian River 
and through appropriate public outreach, a project can be developed 
that does this much better than the proposed project.   
 
Comments that Sweetwater Springs Water District wishes to have put 
into the public record and to be considered by the Board of Directors of 
the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) in its consideration of this 
DEIR include: 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  2 
January 12, 2017 
 


 
1. Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is harmed by this 


project through this Project's attempt, whether foreseen or 
unforeseen, to make SSWD's water use junior to projected 
water uses by users of this project.  SCWA staff have informed 
Sweetwater Springs staff that they believe SSWD has no right to 
divert water during dry periods in the Russian River.  SSWD does 
not agree with that position.  Regardless, this action before the 
State Board is an excellent opportunity to resolve this issue.  
However, this DEIR has no mention of this major water rights issue 
for an urban water supplier with over 3600 customers and the 
major source of water for residential water use in the lower River 
area.  The Project adds the Occidental Community Services District 
and the City of Windsor to the Sonoma County Water Agency's 
(SCWA) permits putting those water users senior to SSWD's water 
rights (according to the SCWA staff theory of SSWD's water rights).  
This is an additional harm to SSWD.   


 
The DEIR also casually mentions other water rights that may have 
bypass flow issues - those bypass flows were likely set by the State 
Board in response to the current higher minimum flows and need to 
be adjusted in response to the petition to reduce the minimum 
flows.  There are likely other water rights-related issue that need to 
be addressed in conjunction with the SCWA petitions and these 
need to be fully examined in the DEIR.  A comprehensive analysis 
of Russian River flow requirements and possibilities is necessary for 
this DEIR to adequately address these serious issues.   


 
The impact to Sweetwater Water Springs Water District is avoidable 
and the DEIR needs to include the mitigation measure(s) to avoid 
this impact.  One possible mitigation would be a recognition by 
SCWA that diversions by SCWA for its contractors in excess of the 
amount diverted in 1999, the original completion date for these 
permits, are junior to Sweetwater Springs diversions and that flow 
in the River during all schedules of the Hydrologic Index has 
adequate unimpaired flows to fulfill SSWD's water rights, and have 
this recognized by the State Board in the final determination on 
these petitions for change of D1610 .   


 
2. The petitions for change claim there will be no harm to 


existing legal water users in the River; from the above 
comments, this is clearly not the case.  The DEIR must fully 
examine all Russian River water rights so that any impacts on any 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  3 
January 12, 2017 
 


water rights are examined and the Project, through this EIR 
process, should provide mitigation or fixes for those impacts.   


 
3. The DEIR must have a better examination and analysis of water 


rights.  The DEIR states that the Water Agency does not make 
decisions on water rights but the State Board does and the State 
Board will use this DEIR to make decisions regarding the water rights 
associated with Decision 1610 (D1610).  Some of the water rights 
mentioned in the DEIR have minimum bypass flows but those bypass 
flows were likely established with the minimum flows established by 
D1610.  The DEIR should examine this issue in more detail and also 
examine whether other water rights associated with the Russian River 
will be impacted by anything associated with this Project.   


 
4. The DEIR does not adequately discuss all current issues with 


D1610, instead just addressing the narrow focus that SCWA 
desires the State Board to rule on - the minimum flows 
negotiated between SCWA and NMFS for the BO.  D1610 is 
broken in part because diversions from the Eel River have been 
reduced and diversions from the Russian River have increased.    
Change in D1610 does not happen often and, if done, must be done 
correctly and the time used to evaluate changes used efficiently.  
SCWA may only want to change a few elements of D1610, but 
those elements affect everything else and all the impacts must be 
fully examined in this DEIR.   


 
5. This DEIR is much less than what is needed to properly 


evaluate the impacts of the Fish Flow Project on the Russian 
River watershed.  The DEIR is too narrowly focused and only 
describes a limited set of changes to D1610.  D1610 is a 
comprehensive set of rules for operating the Russian River.  One 
can't just change a few conditions without considering the whole.  
This DEIR doesn't do that and needs to be revised and expanded to 
look at all aspects of D1610.  The Sonoma County Water Agency 
(SCWA) is the pre-eminent water agency in Sonoma County, and as 
such, should be broadly looking at fixing the issues with D1610.  
Even if it wasn't the pre-eminent water agency, the changes it's 
requesting need a full examination of D1610.   


 
6. The California State Water Resources Board (State Board) 


should be the lead agency and responsible for the 
preparation of this DEIR.  The  designated lead agency, Sonoma 
County Water Agency SCWA has made its decision in regards to the 
Fish Flow Project – it negotiated certain flows with the National 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  4 
January 12, 2017 
 


Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) in agreeing to a Biological Opinion 
(BO) of No Jeopardy for the endangered and threatened salmonid 
species covered by the BO.  The State Board has to make a decision 
on the petition to change D1610 and other requests by SCWA.   In 
the past the State Board has aggressively defended its 
responsibility to be lead agency for its decisions and it should do so 
again in this case.   The State Board is clearly the agency making 
decisions in this situation, and should be lead agency and 
responsible for DEIR preparation to ensure that the DEIR includes 
all the information needed to make the necessary revisions to 
D1610.  In addition, it is not appropriate for a project proponent to 
also be the lead agency in the preparation of the DEIR document.   


 
7. The DEIR claims there was extended public outreach in the 


preparation of this DEIR.  We are not aware of what we would 
call extended public outreach in this process.  The process should 
have included multiple regional meetings so that there was 
opportunity for all those affected by the changes in Russian River 
flows would have had an opportunity to understand the impacts and 
effects of the flow regimes evaluated during this DEIR process and 
to make certain the Fish Flow Project and this DEIR includes 
information on all the changes that could or need to happen with 
D1610.  This did not happen.   The DEIR must correct its assertions 
that there was extended public outreach.  Better yet would be a 
hold on this EIR process so that the extended public outreach can 
occur and help make this a better project and DEIR.   


 
 


8. Piecemealing - this DEIR's focus on only the Fish Flow Project 
does not allow needed examination of the interrelated impacts 
of this project with the Estuary Project and the Dry Creek 
Project.  These three projects should have been first considered as 
one project but was split into smaller constituents for easier review 
and perhaps approval.  There should have been a more broadly scoped 
DEIR process for the much larger project that has come out of the 
Biological Opinion process. This draft DEIR addresses only a part of 
this larger project that is bringing and has brought many changes to 
the Russian River.   The overall project is a water supply project for 
the water contractors of SCWA that is constrained by a Biological 
Opinion (BO) which requires lower minimum flows at a number of 
locations along the mainstem of the River, sand barrier maintenance at 
the mouth of the River to provide for better maintenance of estuary 
conditions in the River near the mouth (which is one of the reasons for 
the lower minimum flows in the lower River), and certain actions in 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  5 
January 12, 2017 
 


Dry Creek to make that better habitat for coho salmon, and perhaps 
other things.  Properly scoped, this larger project is an opportunity to 
examine changes to Decision 1610 hydrologic index to better reflect 
current and future conditions.   
 


9. As examples of piecemealing, the DEIR does not adequately 
examine the impacts of this project on salinity in the lower 
River nor does it explain or analyze the necessity for lower 
flows downstream of the Hacienda Bridge.     If the sand 
barrier project works, salinity may move up the River to where it 
impacts potable water supply, including, but not limited to the 
water supply for Sweetwater Springs Water District.  We don't see 
any discussion of this in this DEIR or the Sand Barrier Project DEIR 
- it should be fully examined in this DEIR.   


 
It appears the only reason related to the BO for the lower flows 
downstream of the Hacienda Bridge is to keep the sand barrier 
closed during the summer.  This doesn't appear to be happening 
but more importantly this is not adequately discussed in either EIR.  
We don't get another shot at the Estuary Project EIR; it should be 
fully discussed in this DEIR or the EIR process should be opened up 
to include analysis of both projects together.   


 
10. This DEIR should cover a broader range of alternatives and 


information so that the State Board can make decisions 
necessary to completely and properly redo Decision 1610.  Once 
certified by SCWA Board of Directors this DEIR will be needed by the 
California State Water Resources Board (State Board) to make their 
decisions on the petitions for change requested by SCWA.  As such, 
the State Board should have been the lead agency and should have 
been providing the direction for this DEIR.  That didn't happen and it 
shows in the narrow focus of the DEIR which will not give the State 
Board adequate information and analysis for its decisions on the 
change petitions.   


The Proposed Project includes components (from the draft  DEIR) 
which are all ultimately decided upon by the State Board, yet the 
DEIR does not adequately discuss and evaluate those components.  
Specifically,   


a. The new Russian River Hydrologic Index has no alternatives 
evaluated in the DEIR;  


b. extending the deadlines for completing full beneficial use in 
these permits to December 31, 2040 with no explanation why 41 
additional years are needed to complete the requested diversion.  







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  6 
January 12, 2017 
 


The DEIR has no explanation why the permit completion date is so 
far into the future, indeed there should be alternatives to this date 
as part of the discussion; 


c. The petitions for change stated that these requests would not 
harm existing water rights holders and this is not the case.  As 
noted above, adding the Occidental Community Services District 
and Town of Windsor points of diversion and re-diversion to the 
authorized points of diversion in these permits to the detriment of  
Sweetwater Springs Water District and likely other licensed and 
permitted water rights holders in the Russian River watershed.    
Sweetwater Springs Water District has a license for 1137 AF, this 
water use has been fully perfected and this project adds water 
diversions with a requested priority date ahead of Sweetwater 
Springs Water District.  The DEIR needs to fully discuss this issue, 
but it is mentioned nowhere in the draft DEIR.   


11. The DEIR does not adequately address the project objective 
of 75,000 AFY of diversions which is much more than the 
Baseline diversion amount and more than current SCWA 
diversions.  The amount of 75,000 AFY diversion needs full discussion 
and alternatives analyzed.  California water agencies are under 
directions to reduce water use, not increase it.  The DEIR needs to 
fully discuss the trends of urban water use and how that may affect 
the projected water use of the SCWA contractors and other water 
users to whom SCWA sells water.   The amount of diversion should be 
part of the alternatives analysis.  There are at least two issues with 
Contractor diversions as presented in the DEIR: total amount of 
75,000 AFY and taking the total amount in all years in the modeling of 
alternatives.  


 
12.  The DEIR needs to contain an explanation of actual SCWA 


diversions and projected diversions including information 
stated in the SCWA Urban Water Management Plans compared 
to the requested 75,000 AFY diversion.  For example, the SCWA 
2010 UWMP has an actual 2010 diversion of 50,796 AF (the 2015 
diversion is lower at 43,145 but that was a drought year with calls for 
reducing water use).  The population served in 2015 was 614,196.   
The 2040 UWMP has a projected 2040 population of 742,040 which is 
an increase of 21% over 2015 and a diversion projection of 73,895 
which is a 45% increase over the 2010 actual diversion amount.  The 
DEIR needs to explain why water use is increasing at a higher rate 
than population when all trends and State agency directions are for 
water use to decrease on a per capita basis.   


 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  7 
January 12, 2017 
 


 
13. The hydrology analyses in the DEIR should be changed to 


better reflect actual diversion practices during droughts.   The 
modeling apparently does not accurately handle contractor diversions 
during a drought and the DEIR does not discuss drought conditions 
and how drought is defined relative to the various schedules of the 
proposed Hydrologic Index.  Is a drought schedule 3, 4 or 5 or some 
combination of the above?  The modeling apparently has annual 
diversions of 75,000 AFY for all alternatives in all years except when 
Lake Sonoma goes below 100,000 AF of storage.  In actual practice, 
whenever there's a drought as defined by low rainfall or low Lake 
Mendocino storage, regional urban water agencies urge our customers 
to conserve water.  Contractor diversions should be tied to the Hydro 
Index -when it goes to schedule 3 or lower, contractor diversions 
should be lowered and that should be included in the modeling.  The 
DEIR should fully discuss this and redo the analyses.   
 


14. The request for 75,000 AFY should have alternatives to 
better reflect actual future diversions.  The continued request for 
a 75,000 AFY diversion amount  goes contrary to current State 
practices whereby all urban water agencies had to go through a 
process to reduce their water use by 20% by 2020 compared to a 
baseline from the early 2000's. SCWA's 2015 diversion of 44,000 AF 
and the DEIR Baseline of 55,000 - can and should diversions increase 
that much? SCWA may desire to preserve its 75,000 AFY diversion 
amount but it may not be a realistic number and whatever that 
number might be, it should be fully examined and discussed in the 
DEIR in an alternatives analysis.    


 
15. The DEIR does not explain what happens to River flows 


when diversions are not at 75,000 AFY.   All the analyses of the 
preferred project are based on an annual diversion of 75,000 AFY 
through the modeling of the simulated historical record of Russian 
River flows.  However, that level of diversion is only reached, even by 
SCWA estimations in 2040, 24 years from now.  The DEIR baseline has 
annual diversions of 55,000 AFY, in 2015 SCWA diverted 43,000 AFY 
and the SCWA 2015 Urban Water Management Plan shows a projected 
diversion of 73,895 in 2040 but only 64,439 in 2020 (which seems 
high compared to the 2015 diversion).   


 
The DEIR has no discussion of whether these diversion projections are 
reasonable and no discussion of where the extra water goes in the 
many years prior to the full 75,000 AFY diversion happening, if it ever 
does happen. The DEIR needs to explain and examine what happens 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  8 
January 12, 2017 
 


to the extra water in the system when diversions are significantly 
lower than 75,000 AFY.  Does this water result in extra summer flow 
releases?  Will it be pulsed down the river in late summer or fall 
releases?  We believe it will need to be released prior to the winter 
rainy season to provide flood storage - is that the case?  The DEIR 
needs a full explanation of this. 


 
16. Hydrologic Index - The Hydrologic Index (HI) is a major new, 


changed element of the Fish Flow Project that SSWD supports but 
there is no alternatives discussion of this in the DEIR and there aren't 
alternatives that have a range of HI's.  The DEIR states that in the 
technical committee analyses that came up with the new HI, 
consideration was given to an HI that had upper and lower River 
components with the lower River component based on Lake Sonoma.  
There's no discussion in the DEIR of why the preferred HI was chosen 
and no analysis given in the DEIR on the differences.  It makes sense 
that the lower River could be governed by Lake Sonoma water levels 
as that's where the summer releases are coming from.   
 


17. The DEIR does not discuss or analyze why the proposed 
minimum flows in drier years are lower than what was 
negotiated with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) 
in the Biological Opinion (BO). The BO has minimum flow for 
normal years in the lower River (70 cfs) but stipulates nothing 
different for drier years, yet the alternatives presented and the 
proposed project have lower minimum flows than required by NMFS 
(stage 4 is 50 cfs and stage 5 is 35 cfs).  The DEIR should include 
alternatives that directly match the flows negotiated with NMFS and 
should discuss why the proposed project has lower flows than those 
required by the BO.   
 


18. The DEIR should provide more information on the future of 
Eel River Diversions.  These are likely getting cut off in the future 
and the DEIR should properly discuss this.  It's mentioned in the 
Cumulative Chapter but not given the prominence it deserves.   
 


19. The DEIR has a limited and poor choice of alternatives. The 
official list of alternatives are a poor selection of what should have 
been analyzed in the DEIR  The Baseline is not the real baseline; it's a 
situation that existed for maybe two years but it's claimed for much 
longer.  Perhaps there should be a Baseline 1 and 2 like there is a No 
Project 1 and 2.   The Table 7-1 list of alternatives flow scenarios is 
not clear - what do these alternative names mean?  For examples BO, 
NP1, NP2 can be guessed, but what are F1-18?  Are these possible 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  9 
January 12, 2017 
 


alternatives that were discarded for undisclosed reasons?  Why are 
these flow alternatives not part of bigger list of alternatives 
considered by this DEIR?  Also, as noted in other comments there 
should be alternatives for the HI and the 75,000 AFY diversion 
amount.   


20. Section 4.0.6 Effects Determined Not to be Significant and 
Not Discussed Further includes effects that are significant and 
should be fully discussed in the DEIR - This project is going to 
increase diversions to 75,000 AFY yet there are no population and 
housing, traffic, and land use and planning (and maybe agricultural 
resources) effects?  Who is going to use the extra 20,000 AFY, where 
are they going to live, and how are they going to get to work?   The 
end project results in a 40% increase in water use according to this 
DEIR.  In a era of better and better water conservation, why would 
more water be needed unless  there weren't at least 40% more 
people to use that water?  The DEIR must explain this anomaly.   


 
21. Lower River water quality appears to be impacted by the 


cumulative impacts; this is an issue that needs more 
examination and analysis in the DEIR.  The DEIR says no 
mitigation possible but only because it's not considering all alternatives 
- releases from Lake Sonoma, for example.        


 
22.   Appendix G, Hydrology, needs fixing - no heading, no Table 


of Contents; there's no way to know what is in this appendix.   
 
Again, this Project harms Sweetwater Springs Water District by not 
considering the Project's effects on the District's water rights and the 
potential loss of water supply to downstream water users.  We 
recommend that the Fish Flow Project as currently proposed should be 
rejected by the Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors, that 
the claimed public outreach be performed so that this needed Project 
(and we do agree that it is needed) can be better formulated to meet the 
needs of all users of the River, and that the EIR process be restarted with 
an improved Project that does not harm the District.   
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment. 
 
 
 
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder 
President 







SSWD Fish Flow Project DEIR Comments  10 
January 12, 2017 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
sws@monitor.net 
707-869-4000 
 
cc: Lynda Hopkins, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors 
 James Gore, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors 
 Shirlee Zane, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors 
 Susan Gorin, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors 
 David Rabbitt, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors 
 Matt St. John, North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 
 Jennifer Dick-McFadden, California State Water Resources 


Control Board 



mailto:smack@sweetwatersprings.com



		Item V-A - Fish Flow Project DEIR Comment Letter

		Meeting Date : January 5, 2017 



		Item V-A.1 - Fish Flow Project DEIR Comment Letter






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: January 5, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: EXPIRATION/EXTENSION OF OFFICE LEASE AT 17081 HWY 116, 
GUERNEVILLE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation from the General Manager on the 
District office lease. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District rents its office space at 17081 Hwy 116 from Ferrellgas, L.P.  We have 
been at this location since 1999.  In 2002 the District executed Addendum #1 which 
added warehouse space to the lease, and in 2011 the District executed Addendum #2 
which extended the lease for three years at the same lease rate ($2250 per month) and 
included a provision that the lease could be extended for three additional years with 60 
days notice.  The three year extension included a provision that the rent can increase 
annually by the Consumer Price Index with a maximum of 2%.  The District extended 
the lease in May 2014 and the current extended lease period is set to expire on July 31, 
2017.  Current rent is $2364.30. 
 
Staff has contacted Ferrellgas staff, Kristi Grego, re the lease and have been offered a 
3-year extension for  $2482.50 per month which is a 4.7% increase over our current 
monthly rent.  I asked if they would consider an option for an additional 3-year 
extension and Kristi responded with an offer of 2606.31 which is a 5% increase over 
the first 3 years.  I have told Kristi that these amounts seem reasonable and that we 
discuss this at this meeting.   
 
This rental proposal is consistent with the current lease and seems a reasonable way to 
go.  Staff like this location and these facilities.  Locking them up for six more years (but 
only 3 years at a time for us) at this rental arrangement is an easy way to go.     
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2017-2018 BUDGET PROCESS 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2017-2018 
Budget process and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board typically approves its annual budget at the May meeting and we 
intend to follow this practice this year.  Table 1 below identifies a calendar for 
the budget approval process.  Milestones include the Proposition 218 process 
which has a 45-day notice and a public hearing for increases in rates and 
fees, if necessary, and a public hearing on the Budget itself.  A Proposition 
218 Notice will be necessary for any rate increase for Fiscal Year 2017-18 or 
beyond.     
 
In past years the Board President has appointed two Board Members to the 
ad hoc Budget Committee to assist the General Manager in the development 
of the budget.  Those appointments have occurred either at the December or 
January meetings.   
 
The District’s financial planning has assumed annual 3% increases to the 
base, water usage rates and the Capital Debt Reduction Charge.  Over the 
last 12 months (October 2016 Index), the Consumer Price Index for all Urban 
Consumers, San Francisco area (CPI-U) advanced  3.6 percent.  The energy 
index increased 3.4 percent, largely the result of an increase  in the price of 
gasoline. The index for all items less food and energy advanced 1.0 percent 
since October 2015.   The overall increase is a little higher than a year ago 
(2.6%), the energy index increased while last year it decreased, and the 
increase for all items less food and energy had a smaller increase than the 
prior year (3.4%).  A 1% increase in water rates returns annual revenue of 
approximately $22,000.   
 
If the District decides to increase water rates, staff also wishes to review fees 
and charges so that these can be adjusted at the same time (and noticed in 
the same Prop 218 notice).   
 







FY 2017-2018 BUDGET PROCESS   2 
January 5, 2017 
 


 


 
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2017-2018 Budget Preparation  
Approved Capital Improvement Program  December 1, 2016 


Introduce Budget Process January 5, 2017 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2017 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 2, 2017 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 20, 2017 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 6, 2017 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary


May 4, 2017 


 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: January 5, 2017 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2017  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in November were 18,070 units (41.5 AF, 
Guerneville cycle) and production was 44.9 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were lower (47.8 AF and 47.9 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage is up 
some (21.0) and remains at historically low levels.   The reduction from November 2013, 
the State Board standard, was 24.0%.  GPCD for November was 51.8.  Figure 1 shows 
sales, production and % difference since 2008.   


 
2. Leaks:  In November we had 9 total leaks and spent 83 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and the same number of leaks and  
man-hours compared to November one year ago.    Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total breaks line as well. The District continues to be at historic lows for 
this.         


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall: The rainy season continues to do well but not too well.  Rainfall is a 


bit above the near-term average and below the long-term average.  The mid December 
rains brought the River above 27 feet but comfortably below flood stage.  Two years ago we 
had more rain at this time (25" compared to 19") but it mostly stopped raining after the new 
year; let's hope a more moderate winter-spring this year.      


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Nothing to report for December; we are expecting movement 


after the New Year. 
 
5. El Bonita Flooding Plan:  The plates for the well vaults at El Bonita are being installed this 


week and we hope finished prior to the Board meeting.  This has turned out to be a more 
difficult and slower effort than we expected, but it's getting done.  We dodged a flood event 
in mid December; we were expecting this project to be done much sooner in the year.   


 
6. 2017 CIP:  We are expecting this project to be advertised this month.   


 
7. TAP Training:  Staff (me, Julie and Kevin) had online training on how to properly do the 


AWWA Water Audit reporting that is now required by the State.  Most of the training 
involved proper evaluation of the data we use for the water audit report.   We are being 
down-graded because we don't do annual production meter calibrations, we don't have an 
annual residential meter replacement, and we don't have 3rd party review of financial 
information.  Our final data validity score was 58 (out of 100).  We don't know where that 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
January 5, 2017 
 


score ranks with other water utilities.  It was an interesting discussion - AWWA gives higher 
ranks for activities more easily done by larger utilities and does not give credit for the "eyes 
on facilities" abilities of smaller utilities like us.  The data validity score doesn't mean 
anything in itself - there is no "passing grade" (yet).  On other performance indicators, the 
District is in the middle of the pack.   


 
It will be interesting to see if the State requires some passing grade in the future.  This 
water audit is compared to the required financial audit, but the State does not grade our 
financial audit; it's a disclosure document and it is up to the governing board and the 
general public to evaluate the financial audit.  If the water audit is treated the same, it will 
be a useful annual exercise.    


         
8. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  There was one toilet rebate reported for 


December. 
 
9. In-House Construction Projects: Two in-house projects were completed in December: 


replaced 140 ft of 2 inch line and a 1 inch service on Orchard Rd., Guerneville  (66 man-
hours) and repaired failed saddle on Hidden Valley Rd., Guerneville (34 man-hours). 


 
10.  Gantt Chart:   January is the start of the annual budget process; a short item on the 


agenda. Next month shows the comment letter due on the draft water rights DEIR and that's 
on this agenda.   


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
January 5, 2017 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16


B
re


ak
s


 
 
 
 Main Breaks


 Service Breaks


 
 Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a


ti
o


n
 (


in
)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2016


07-15 Avg


2017


-







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 







Water Audit Report for:
Reporting Year:


All volumes to be entered as: ACRE-FEET PER YEAR


Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments


WATER SUPPLIED Pcnt: Value:


Volume from own sources: 5 658.000 acre-ft/yr 7 acre-ft/yr
Water imported: acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr
Water exported: acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr


Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: 658.000 acre-ft/yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration


.


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 5 518.000 acre-ft/yr


Billed unmetered: acre-ft/yr


Unbilled metered: acre-ft/yr Pcnt: Value:


Unbilled unmetered: 5 1.625 acre-ft/yr 1.25% acre-ft/yr


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 519.625 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 138.375 acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:


Unauthorized consumption: 1.645 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Customer metering inaccuracies: 3 10.571 acre-ft/yr 2.00% acre-ft/yr
Systematic data handling errors: 1.295 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses: 13.511 acre-ft/yr


Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 124.864 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES: 138.375 acre-ft/yr


NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 140.000 acre-ft/yr


= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered


SYSTEM DATA


Length of mains: 10 65.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 8 3,800


Service connection density: 58 conn./mile main


Yes
Average length of customer service line: ft


Average operating pressure: 5 75.0 psi


COST DATA


Total annual cost of operating water system: 10 $3,795,000 $/Year


Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 10 $2.73
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 5 $300.00 $/acre-ft


 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:


 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:


     1: Volume from own sources


     2: Customer metering inaccuracies


     3: Billed metered


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 Reporting Worksheet


1.625


2015 1/2015 - 12/2015
Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)


*** YOUR SCORE IS: 59 out of 100 ***


A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score


                   Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied


Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? 


 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:


$/100 cubic feet (ccf)


              <----------- Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J' ---------->


Enter a positive value, otherwise a default percentage of 0.25% is applied and a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


?


?


?


?


?


? Click to access definition


?


?


?


?


?


?


Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the input 
data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades


?


?


?


?


?


?


(length of service line, beyond the property boundary, 
that is the responsibility of the utility)


Use buttons to select
percentage of water supplied


OR
value


?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below


?


?


?


?


+


+ Click to add a comment


 WAS v5.0


+


+


+


+


+


+


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


?


?


?


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+ Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses


?


To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where 
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it.


Reporting Worksheet      1AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0







Water Audit Report for: Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)
Reporting Year:


System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: 13.511                               acre-ft/yr


+              Real Losses: 124.864                             acre-ft/yr


=            Water Losses: 138.375                             acre-ft/yr


Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): 77.43 acre-ft/yr


Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $16,065


Annual cost of Real Losses: $37,459 Valued at Variable Production Cost


Performance Indicators:


Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 21.3%


Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 1.4%  Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost


Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 3.17 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per service connection per day: 29.33 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per length of main per day*: N/A


Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: 0.39 gallons/connection/day/psi


From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 124.86 acre-feet/year


1.61


* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 System Attributes and Performance Indicators


*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 59 out of 100 ***


Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:


2015 1/2015 - 12/2015


Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton


?


?


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


 WAS v5.0


Financial:


Operational Efficiency:


Performance Indicators      2AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0





		Item VI- General Manager Report 1-5-2017

		Meeting Date: January 5, 2017 



		Item VI.1  AWWA Water Audit AfterTraining

		Reporting Worksheet

		Performance Indicators





